Aurora Public Library Board PROCEDURAL BY-LAW

Date of Last Revision: May 09, 2018

Board Motion # 18.05.54



TABLE of CONTENTS

<u>SECTION</u> <u>PAGE</u>
1. Name and Address
2. Authority3
3. Powers, Duties, and Responsibility3
4. Composition of the Board3
5. Officers of the Board4
5.1 The Chair will:4
5.2 The Vice-Chair will:5
5.3 The Secretary-Treasurer will:5
6. Board Spokesperson5
7. Committees5
8. Payment of Board Expenses5
9. Conflict of Interest6
10.Meetings6
10.1 Location6
10.2 Notification6
10.3 Attendance6
10.4 Quorum7
10.5 Open to the Public7
10.6 Closed Session7
10.7 Order of Business8
10.8 Standard Procedures9
10.9 Authority for Other Procedural Matters10
11.Special Meetings10
12.Board Members' Conduct
13.Public Conduct
14.By-Law Review, Amendment, and Conflict
APPENDIX A: Standard Motions - Bourinot's Rules at a Glance
APPENDIX B: Glossary of Terms14
APPENDIX C: Code of Conduct

1. Name and Address

Aurora Public Library Board 15145 Yonge Street, Aurora, Ontario L4G 1M1

2. Authority

The Public Libraries Act, R.S.O. 1990, CHAPTER P.44 (hereafter called the "Act") provides that public libraries will be under the management and control of a board, which is a corporation.

The Town of Aurora By-Law # 512 establishes the Aurora Public Library Board (hereafter called the "Board").

The Board is a registered charity with the Canadian Revenue Agency, # 11879 6754 RR0001.

3. Powers, Duties, and Responsibility

The powers and duties of the Board are those described in the Act. In accordance with the Act, it is the responsibility of the Board to:

- a) Provide, in co-operation with other boards, a comprehensive and efficient public library service that reflects the community's unique needs;
- b) Provide library services in the French language where appropriate;
- c) Operate one or more libraries and ensure that they are conducted in accordance with the Act and the regulations;
- d) Make an annual report to the Minister and make any other reports required by the Act and its regulations or requested by the Minister from time to time;
- e) Appoint a Chief Executive Officer who will have general supervision over and direction of the operations of the public library and its staff, will attend all board meetings, and will have the other powers and duties that the Board assigns;
- f) Make rules for the use of library services; for admission to the library; for the exclusion from the library of persons who behave in a disruptive manner or cause damage to library property; impose fines for breaches of the rules; suspend library privileges for breaches of the rules; and regulate all other matters connected with the management of the library and library property;

4. Composition of the Board

The Board will be composed of at least five (5) members appointed by the Town of Aurora Council.

Citizen appointments must meet the qualifications set out in the Act. A qualified citizen is one who:

- a) Is at least eighteen years old
- b) Is a Canadian citizen
- c) Is a resident of the municipality of Aurora
- d) Is not employed by the Board or by the Town of Aurora

Council may appoint its own members to the Board, up to a number that is one (1) less than the majority.

An appointed member will be disqualified and his or her seat will become vacant, in accordance with the Act, if the member:

- a) Is convicted of an indictable offense
- b) Becomes incapacitated
- c) Is absent from the meetings of the Board for three consecutive months, without being authorized by a Board resolution
- d) Otherwise forfeits his or her seat

5. Officers of the Board

The Officers of the Board will be the elected Chair and Vice-Chair and the appointed Secretary-Treasurer who is the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair and Vice-Chair will be elected annually at the January meeting of the Board, from among the Board's membership. Council representatives may not seek election to become an Officer of the Board. Each elected officer will serve a one (1) year term or until the next meeting at which annual elections are held by the Board.

5.1 The Chair will:

- a) Preside at the meetings of the Board;
- b) Conduct Board meetings in accordance with the Act and other relevant legislation, within the rules of procedure adopted by the Board;
- c) In the event that a decision must be made without specific authority of the Board, inform the Board of the decision and the reason(s) necessitating it, at the next regular Board meeting;
- d) Serve as an ex-officio member of all Board committees;
- e) Act as one of the authorized signing officers of all formal documents pertaining to Board business;
- Represent the Board at public or private meetings for the purpose of conducting, promoting or completing the business of the Board;

g) Advise the Vice-Chair if, for any reason, the Chair is temporarily unable to perform these functions;

5.2 The Vice-Chair will:

- a) In the absence of the Chair, be vested with all the powers and perform all the duties of the Chair;
- b) Be assigned by the Board other powers and duties from time to time.

5.3 The Secretary-Treasurer will:

- a) Conduct the Board's official correspondence;
- b) Keep minutes of every meeting of the Board;
- c) Receive and account for all the Board's money;
- d) Open an account or accounts in the name of the Board in a chartered bank, trust company or credit union approved by the Board;
- e) Deposit all money received on the Board's behalf to the credit of that account(s);
- f) Disburse the money as the Board directs.

6. Board Spokesperson

The Chair is the spokesperson for the Board. The Chief Executive Officer is authorized to act as Board spokesperson with respect to labour relations.

Individual members will not act or communicate on behalf of the Board, unless delegated by the Chair or approved by the Board to do so.

7. Committees

Committees of one of more members may be appointed by the Board for ad hoc or special purposes. Committees will be limited in responsibility and power to advising the full Board, unless specifically authorized to act on behalf of the Board. Committees will provide advice in the form of a report to the Board for its consideration.

8. Payment of Board Expenses

Citizen appointees will be paid no salary, fees or honorarium for their services. However, any member of the Board may be reimbursed for proper out-of-pocket expenses and travel costs incurred in carrying out their assigned duties as members. Payment of such reimbursements must be allowed for in the approved budget, and approval of payment is subject to the same review process as any other payment made by the Library.

9. Conflict of Interest

The Municipal Conflict of Interest Act R.S.O. 1990, Chapter M.50 will govern members of the Board. Each meeting agenda will provide an opportunity for members to disclose direct or indirect pecuniary interest in a matter as well as the general nature of that interest. The minutes will record any such disclosures. Once a disclosure is made, the member will not participate in discussion or voting on the applicable matter.

10.Meetings

The following procedures concern conduct of Library Board meetings:

10.1 Location

Meetings of the Aurora Public Library Board will be held at the Aurora Public Library, 15145 Yonge Street in Aurora, unless otherwise determined by the Board.

10.2 Notification

Notice of meetings will be in the form of a written agenda accompanied by its supporting documents, including the date, time, and location of the meeting.

The CEO/Secretary-Treasurer, in consultation with the Board Chair, will prepare the agenda. Any member wishing to place an item on the agenda may make a request to do so through the Chair or Secretary, no later than seven (7) days prior to the meeting. Such requests will then be considered at the Chair's discretion. Minutes of the previous regular Meeting and any Special Meetings will be provided to the members with the agenda.

The Board package will be delivered in electronic format, and in print format to a member's designated address if requested, at least three days prior to an upcoming meeting.

Lack of receipt of notice for a regular meeting will not affect the validity of holding the meeting or any action taken thereat, provided a quorum is obtained.

10.3 Attendance

Members are expected to attend all meetings of the Board. Any member who must be absent from a Meeting will advise the *CEO*/Secretary-Treasurer or staff designate in advance. If a member cannot attend a meeting they may participate via teleconference, video conference or Internet video application, provided sufficient notice has been given for any technical setup requirements.

10.4 Quorum

A quorum for the transaction of business at any Meeting will be a simple majority of the Board. As soon as there is a quorum present, the Chair may call the Meeting to order.

Where a quorum is not present within thirty (30) minutes after the hour fixed for a Meeting, the Secretary will record the names of the members present. In the absence of a quorum, the Meeting may continue; however, no motions may be made or carried.

10.5 Open to the Public

Meetings of the Board will be open to the public, other than for a duly constituted closed session, and will not be closed to the public during the taking of a vote.

10.6 Closed Session

An approved motion is required to move into a closed session. Such a motion is not debatable. The following subjects may be discussed at properly constituted closed sessions.

- .1 Debate as to whether or not an item is properly in closed sessions or not if, in the Chair's opinion, such discussion would be prejudicial if discussed at an open meeting.
- .2 The security of the Board's property.
- .3 Personal matters about an identifiable individual.
- .4 A proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the Board.
- .5 Labour relations or employee negotiations.
- .6 Litigation or potential litigation, including matters before any Court or Administrative Tribunal, affecting the Board.
- .7 Advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose.
- .8 A matter in respect of which a board or board committee may hold a closed meeting under another Act.
- .9 A request under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.

10.7 Order of Business

The following will be the standard order of business at a regular meeting of the Board, unless otherwise decided by the majority of members present at the meeting in question.

- .1 Call to order
- .2 Confirmation of Quorum
 - Recording of regrets for attendance received by the Chair or Secretary and excused absences, leading to confirmation of quorum
- .3 Adoption of the Agenda
 - Determines the business that will be considered by the Board at the meeting
- .4 Declaration of Conflict of Interest
 - Self-declared interest by a member, with respect to items on the approved agenda
- .5 Special Presentations
 - Delegations, presentations by invited guests, orientation sessions: treated as information, unless deemed by the Chair to be added to the agenda as an item for consideration
 - Requests for delegation status must be made in writing, be received by noon two business days prior to the meeting, and must identify the subject and purpose of the delegation, including the name of the spokesperson. Delegates may speak to the matter identified for up to ten minutes. Delegation requests received after the issuing of the agenda will be considered by the Board as an amendment to the agenda
- .6 Minutes of Meeting(s)
 - Approval of minutes of past meeting(s) that record: date/time/place of meeting; attendance of members; adoption of minutes; simple proceedings of the meeting including motions, generally without note or comment
- .7 Business Arising from the Minutes
 - Incidental questions or clarifications from members
 - Formal business arising is addressed under reports or items for consideration

.8 Correspondence

.9 Reports

Operational/status reports from staff or committees

.10 Items for Consideration

• Reports from staff or committees, inclusive of recommendations, for the Board's consideration and determination as to any action

.11 General Business Information / Questions

 Information or questions from members, felt to be of interest to all members, raised for the purpose of clarification or understanding. Such items are not regarded as the business of the meeting. Should a member wish to introduce a matter as Board business, a Notice of Motion for a future agenda may be given

.12 Member Announcements

• Informal and general announcements from members, not recorded as business in the Minutes

.13 Date of Next Meeting

- .14 Closed Session
- .15 Adjournment

10.8 Standard Procedures

.1 Agenda Amendments

The Chair determines if proposed amendments to the Agenda represent minor or substantive business. Minor items can be added as 'other business'. Substantive items require either a Notice of Motion or a 2/3 majority vote to waive proper notice and add to the agenda.

.2 Motions

Main motions require a mover and a seconder in order to discuss or debate and a simple majority vote in order to carry. (See Appendix A for a summary of standard motions)

.3 Rules of Debate

The member moving the motion will have the opportunity to speak first. All members wishing to speak to the motion should be recognized, before any one member speaks for a second time.

.4 Voting

The Chair or Acting Chair may vote with the other members on all questions.

Any question on which there is a tie vote will be deemed to be negative.

An abstention will be dealt with as an abstention only and not deemed to be a negative vote.

Voting will be by a show of hands, unless otherwise indicated. Upon the request of a member a recorded vote will be taken.

A member must be present, or participating via teleconference, video conference or Internet video application, to vote at a regular meeting. Email or proxy votes are not valid.

10.9 Authority for Other Procedural Matters

The accepted authority for guidance on procedural matters not otherwise addressed in this by-law will be the most recent edition of Bourinot's Rules of Order.

11. Special Meetings

The Chair may, or upon written request of any two members of the Board will, call a Special Meeting by giving, through the Secretary, at least two days' notice to each member, specifying the purpose for which the meeting is called.

The purpose of a special meeting will be specific. No business will be transacted or considered at such a meeting other than that specified in the notice.

Special Emergency Meetings may be called with twenty-four hour notice.

The Chair or Acting Chair may arrange for a teleconference or e-mail communication among members to deal with emergency or urgent matters. This option will be avoided as much as possible and a quorum as defined in this by-law will be required to proceed in this manner. Email votes should be responded to as "Reply All" to ensure accountability. All decisions made through a teleconference or email meeting will be ratified at the next scheduled meeting of the Board.

Lack of receipt of notice for a Special Meeting will not affect the validity of holding the meeting or any action taken thereat, provided a quorum is obtained.

12.Board Members' Conduct

Members will be courteous and will not engage in any action that disturbs the meeting. Specifically, members will not:

- a) Use un-parliamentary or offensive language
- b) Make any noise or disturbance that prevents members from being able to participate in a meeting.
- c) Interrupt a member who is speaking, except to raise a matter of privilege or a point of order.
- d) Disregard the Chair's decision on questions of order or practice or on the interpretation of Board by-law.

Members will respect the confidentiality appropriate to issues of a sensitive nature.

Members will abide by the Aurora Public Library Board Code of Conduct for Members of the Aurora Public Library Board. (See Appendix C).

13. Public Conduct

Members of the public will be courteous and will not engage in any action that disturbs the Meeting.

Members of the public will not:

- a) Make any noise or disturbance that prevents members from being able to participate in a meeting.
- b) Address the Board without a prior appointment or permission at a Meeting.
- c) Use un-parliamentary or offensive language.

14. By-Law Review, Amendment, and Conflict

This by-law will be reviewed within the last six (6) months of each term of the Library Board.

By-law amendments require a two-thirds majority vote by the members.

In the event of a conflict between this By-Law and the provision of either the Public Libraries Act or other legislation, the provisions of the Act or other legislation will prevail, to the extent of any conflict.

APPENDIX A: Standard Motions - Bourinot's Rules at a Glance

Nature of Motion	Purpose	Interrupt Speaker?	Seconder Required?	Debatable?	Amendable?	What Majority Is Required?
Main or Substantive	To propose an action to be taken by the Board	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Majority vote
Amend	To change words in a motion, without negating it or in effect creating a new motion.	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Majority vote
Adjourn	To end the meeting	No	Yes	No; Vote is immediate	No	Majority vote
Call for Orders of the Day (Proceed to the Next Item of Business)	To close debate, set aside the motion, and move to next item of business	No	Yes	No; Vote is immediate	No	Majority vote
Call for the Question	To close debate and force vote on the main motion	No	Yes	Yes	No	Majority vote
Challenge Ruling	To overturn ruling of Chair	Yes	Yes	No; Vote is immediate	No	Majority vote
Defer	To defer consideration of a motion to another time or indefinitely	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Majority vote
Point of Order	To inquire about or object to use of procedural rules	Yes	No	Yes, but only the point in question	No	No vote taken; Chair rules
Point of Information	To request information and/or clarification of the motion being debated	Yes, if urgent	No	No	No	No vote taken; Chair rules

Reconsider	To reconsider a motion that previously failed	No	Yes	Yes	No	Advance notice; 2/3 majority vote
Refer	To refer to a committee or another body for study	No	Yes	Yes, but only the referral	Yes, but only the referral	Majority vote
Rescind a Previous Decision	To cancel the results of a previous vote	No	Yes	Yes	No	Advance notice; 2/3 majority vote
Suspend the Rules	To suspend formal procedures for a specific purpose	No	Yes	Yes	No	2/3 majority vote
Table or postpone	To postpone a motion until later in the meeting	No	Yes	Yes	No	Majority vote
Lift from Table	To consider a postponed motion	No	Yes	No	No	Majority vote
Withdraw	To withdraw a motion under consideration. Used only if unanimous consent not given to a request by the mover.	No	Yes	No	No	Majority vote

Source: Bourinot's Rules of Order, Fourth Revised Edition

APPENDIX B: Glossary of Terms

Adjourn To end the meeting.

Agenda A list of business items to be considered at a meeting,

arranged in the order in which they are intended to be

addressed.

Amendment A formal proposal to change the words of a pending motion.

Board The Aurora Public Library Board.

Boards Other public library boards.

CEO/Secretary

-Treasurer

The Chief Executive Officer of the Board.

Chair The person who presides at the meeting.

Closed recording

In private. Only Board members, CEO/Secretary-Treasurer, secretary, and persons authorized by them may be present at a

closed session.

Committee Any Committee, task force, or work group appointed by the

Board.

Council The Council of the Town of Aurora.

Delegation One or more members of the public who address the Board.

Floor, on the The current subject of debate.

Floor, to have To have the right to speak without interruptions, except on

a matter of privilege or a point of order.

Library Aurora Public Library.

Majority vote More than half of the members in attendance at a meeting.

Member A member of the Aurora Public Library Board.

Minutes The legal record of the Board's proceedings and decisions.

Corrections must relate to matters of fact only. A Member

who does not agree with a decision cannot have the

decision changed by changing the minutes. The appropriate

remedy is to move a motion to rescind or to reconsider.

Motion A formal proposal placed before the meeting by one

Member, the mover of the motion, for debate and decision.

Move To formally propose a motion or amendment.

Mover The person who proposes a motion or amendment.

Notice of motion Formal advice to the Board that a member proposes to move

a motion at a future meeting. Notice usually includes the

wording of the proposed motion.

Order Behaviour in a meeting, which allows members to conduct

business without disruption.

Order, A way for the Chair to point out to a member that the

member has call a Member to broken the rules or is

speaking out of turn.

Order, call the

meeting to

An announcement by the Chair to indicate that the meeting is about to start. Also, it is a way for the Chair to enforce discipline on the meeting after the rules have been broken.

Order, point of A way for a Member to draw attention to a breach of the

rules.

Quorum The minimum number of Members who must be present at

a meeting to make the proceedings valid, being a simple

majority of the Board.

Rescind To revoke a previous decision.

Resolution A motion that has been moved, seconded, and carried.

Ruling A decision by the Chair on a procedural point. Any Member

may appeal it, in which case the ruling is immediately put to

a vote without debate.

Second To formally endorse a motion or amendment immediately

after it has been moved.

Seconder The person who formally endorses a motion or amendment.

A seconder need not wait for recognition by the Chair. Seconding does not necessarily mean that a seconder supports the motion, only that the seconder agrees that it

should be considered.

Show of hands The usual way of voting. Those for and those against the

motion are asked to raise their hands. The hands are counted, the result announced, and the motion declared

either carried or lost.

Time limit The maximum time allowed for a speech by an individual

Member, set by the Chair.

Two-thirds majority

Two-thirds, or the closest whole number that is greater than two-thirds, of the Members in attendance at a

meeting.

Un-parliamentary Words or expressions that are disrespectful or language

offensive. It includes swearing and derogatory and racial

remarks.

Vice-Chair The Vice-Chair of the Board.

Vote, majority One more than half the number of Members present.

Vote, recorded A vote in which each Member is asked individually and

publicly to announce his or her vote for or against the motion. It is a way for a Member to protect himself or herself legally by having his or her vote against a motion recorded in the minutes. It must be requested immediately

before the start of voting.

Vote, tie

An equal number of votes for or against a motion.

Voting See Show of hands.



Aurora Public Library Board Code of Conduct for Members of the Aurora Public Library Board

Policy Statement

This Code of Conduct is a public declaration of the principles of good conduct and ethics that appointed members to the Aurora Public Library Board have decided residents could reasonably expect from the Members to demonstrate in their performance and responsibilities as appointed representatives. Appointments to the Aurora Public Library Board are made by Town of Aurora Council, early in the terms of the new Council, for the term of the appointing Council.

The Aurora Public Library is governed by the Aurora Public Library Board under the legislative authority of the *Public Libraries Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended*.

Purpose

The Code of Conduct for Members of the Aurora Public Library Board and related Board policies identifies expectations of Members and establishes quidelines for appropriate conduct to ensure that:

- the decision making process of the Library Board is transparent, accessible and equitable
- decisions are made through appropriate channels of governance structure
- appointed office is not to be used for personal gain
- the conduct of Members is of the highest standard
- there is fairness and respect for the differences and a duty to work together for goodwill and common good

Principles of the Code of Conduct

Although areas of ethical exposure are generally consistent and understood in board governance, the following areas and guidelines have been specifically identified as being paramount to the decision-making process:

- 1. Roles and Obligations
- 2. Confidentiality
- 3. Communications
- 4. Relations with Staff
- 5. Gifts, Hospitality and Benefits
- 6. Conflict of Interest Pecuniary Interest
- 7. Use of Property
- 8. Transparency and Openness in Decision Making
- 9. Professional Development
- 10. Conduct at Meetings
- 11. Harassment
- 12. Implementation

1. Roles and Obligations

Library Board Members are appointed by Council as required by Provincial Legislation, to deal with specific matters under the *Public Libraries Act, R.S.O.* 1990, as amended. The roles, powers and responsibilities of the Aurora Public Library Board are governed by the applicable Provincial Statute and attendant Aurora Public Library Board Procedural By-law.

2. Confidentiality

In their decision making process, Members will have access to information that may be confidential or controversial such as, but not limited to "Closed Session" meetings.

Confidential information means any information that is of a personal nature to Board employees or clients or information that is not available to the public and that, if disclosed, could result in loss or damage to the Library or could give the person to whom it is disclosed an advantage. Confidential information includes, but is not limited to the following information:

- disclosed or discussed at a Closed Session meeting of the Board
- that is circulated to Library Board Members and marked "Confidential"
- that is given verbally in confidence in preparation of or following a
 meeting that is closed to the public and includes, but is not limited to
 the following types of information: personal matters about an
 identifiable individual(s); information about suppliers provided for
 evaluation which might be useful to other suppliers; matters relating to
 legal affairs of the Board; sources of complaints where the identity of
 the complainant is given in confidence; items under negotiations;
 schedules of prices in contract tenders; personal information as defined
 in the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act

Library Board Members shall not disclose or release by any means to any member of the public either in verbal or written form any confidential information acquired by virtue of their office except when required by law to do so.

All information, documentation or deliberations received, reviewed or taken in Closed Session of the Board is confidential until the matter ceases to be confidential, as determined by the Board.

Members shall not permit any person other than those who are entitled thereto to have access to information that is confidential.

Confidential information that is provided to Members by the Library does not belong to them. It is property that belongs to the Library.

The obligation to keep information confidential is a continuing obligation even if the Member ceases to be a Member of the Library Board.

Members have the same access rights to library information as any other resident of the Town, unless the information relates specifically to a matter before the Library Board. Requests for information should be referred to the Chief Executive Officer to be addressed either as an informal request for access to library records, or as a formal request under the *Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act*.

3. Communications

The Chair is the spokesperson for the Board. Individual members will not act or communicate on behalf of the Board, unless delegated by the Chair or approved by the Board to do so in accordance with the Board's Procedural Bylaw.

4. Relations with Staff

Members of the Board shall acknowledge and respect the fact that staff work for the Library as a corporate body and are responsible for making recommendations that reflect their professional expertise and corporate objectives, without due influence from any individual member.

In addition, Members shall acknowledge and respect the fact that staff carry out directions of the Board as a whole and administer the policies of the Library. A Board Member shall refrain from using their position to improperly influence members of staff in their duties or functions or to gain an advantage for themselves or others.

Open communication between Board and staff is encouraged. Issues which may impact the operations of the Library should be directed through the CEO. These may include but are not limited to: assignments or directives; requests for organizational resources of staff time; staff performance, concerns regarding policy infractions; concerns regarding programs or administration.

Board Members shall refrain from publicly criticizing individual members of staff to avoid casting aspersions on their professional competence and credibility.

5. Gifts, Hospitality and Benefits

Board Members may only receive gifts, hospitality or entertainment that are received as an incident of protocol or social obligation that normally accompanies the responsibilities of appointed office. Any gifts, benefits, or hospitality that exceeds these guidelines shall be returned with an explanation of this Code of Conduct. Gifts, souvenirs or mementos with a value greater than a nominal value, if accepted shall be the property of the Library.

Members may accept hospitality or entertainment if the offer is infrequent and appropriate to the occasion.

Nothing in this section prevents the receipt of personal gifts, benefits, rewards, commissions or compensation from any person or organization not connected directly or indirectly with the performance or duties of office (i.e. full time employment with another organization).

Members may also accept the following:

- food and beverages at banquets, receptions, ceremonies or similar events
- food, lodging, transportation and entertainment provided by other levels of government or boards or commissions
- a reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred for proper out-ofpocket expenses and travel costs incurred in carrying out their assigned duties as members

Board members shall be familiar with Aurora Public Library Board Procedural By-law Section 8 Payment of Board expenses.

6. Conflict of Interest - Pecuniary Interest

Library Board Members will recognize their obligations to follow and respect the provisions of the *Municipal Conflict of Interest Act*.

7. Use of Property

Members may only use Library property or services for activities connected with the discharge of official duties having the sanction of the Library Board or permitted by Library policies.

8. Transparency and Openness in Decision Making

Members of the Board will endeavour to conduct and convey Board business in an open and public manner, other than for those issues that may be discussed in Closed Session permitted by the *Public Libraries Act*, so that stakeholders can understand the process, logic and rationale which was used to reach conclusions or decisions.

9. Professional Development

Members have the opportunity to partake in opportunities for professional development, including but not limited to library conferences, seminars and workshops provided it is in association with their duties as a member of the Board. Board Members are encouraged to stay updated on issues and trends so that they can be as efficient and effective as possible in the carriage of their duties and responsibilities.

10. Conduct at Meetings

During Library Board meetings, Members shall conduct themselves with decorum and in accordance with the Library Board's Procedural By-law. Respect for delegations and for fellow Board Members and staff requires that all Members show courtesy and not distract from the business of the Board meeting during presentations and when other members have the floor.

11. Harassment

Harassment of another Board Member, staff or any member of the public is prohibited under the *Ontario Human Rights Code*. In accordance with the *Ontario Human Rights Code* it is the policy of the Library that all persons be treated with dignity and respect in the workplace in an environment free of discrimination and of personal and/or sexual harassment.

Harassment, whether it occurs inside or outside the workplace but is related to the work environment or activities of appointed office is considered to be harassment and is inappropriate behaviour for the purpose of this Code of Conduct.

Harassment includes, but is not limited to any behaviour, conduct or comment by any person that is directed at or is offensive to another person on the grounds of race, ancestry, place of origin, colour, ethnic origin, citizenship, creed, sex, age, handicap, sexual orientation, marital status, or family status and any other grounds under the provisions of the *Ontario Human Rights Code*.

Any complaints of harassment by a Board member will be investigated. The Ontario Human Rights Code applies.

12. Implementation

A copy of the Code of Conduct will be included as part of the orientation for all Board Members. It will also be referenced in the Aurora Public Library Procedural By-Law as the expected standard of conduct for Board members and will be attached to the By-Law as Appendix C.

Members are expected to formally and informally review their adherence to the provisions of this Code on a regular basis or when so requested by the Board.